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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

St. Stephen's Episcopal Church is an 1872 frame board-and-batten 
construction on the northwest corner of 15th and Adams Streets in 
Ashland, Nebraska (1970 population, 2,176). The immediate neighbor­ 
hood is residential, and the church is a key corner edifice.

The nave is covered by a steeply pitched gable roof whose ridge 
is straddled by a belfry at the eastern end. The principal entrance 
is a gabled enclosure near the southwest corner (see photo 4), and 
the south (main) wall is treated with two frame buttresses (see photos 
2,3,and 4). On the nave's east end is a five-sided apse enlivened by 
three gablets (photos 1,2,and 3). North of the apse is a second 
gabled entrance enclosure   this one serving a parish hall whose 
roof is lower than the nave's (see photo 1). Wooden shakes is the 
material covering all roofs, including the pyramidal steeple over the 
belfry. Excepting the removal of iron cresting atop the apse and its 
gablets (see photo 2), St. Stephen's exterior is in its original state,

The interior is well preserved and contains the correct fittings 
for a church of the Anglican Communion. The ceiling is supported by 
two tiers of cross beams and achieves an impressive height. Two 
narrow lancet windows (see photo 8) pierce the nave's rear wall and 
shorter lancets light the nave and choir. The pointed arch motif is 
carried on in the chancel by the shape of the apse and by two wooden 
frames that flank it.

The pews appear to be original, and the choir screens and a 
canopied ecclesiastical chair (photo 7) are fine elements. In the 
1940s a high wooden dado was installed in the apse, and this is the 
only alteration that has eceurred to the interior of St. Stephen's.

The nominated property is a rectamgular lot measuring 140 feet 
deep and 88 feet wide. Included with the church on this lot are 
several trees approaching full maturity which enhance the setting.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

St. Stephen's Episcopal Church is significant as being the finest 
representative of Gothic Revival architecture in the community of Ash­ 
land, Nebraska. Board and batten construction renders the church 
further individuality, and the building has suffered only minor alter­ 
ations since its construction in 1872. Also, St. Stephen's is the 
oldest church building in Ashland, and is recognized as a local land­ 
mark by the community.

In June, 1871, a request to establish an Episcopal parish in Ash­ 
land was submitted to the Rt. Rev. R.H. Clarkson, first Bishop of the 
Episcopal Diocese of Nebraska. The request being approved, the 
Episcopalians of Ashland voted in June of that same year to build a 
church dedicated to St. Stephen (The First 100 Years, p. 28).

After 106 years s St. Stephen's retains a significant degree of its 
original appearance, and it is easily identifiable as being a church 
of the Anglican Communion through its stylistic features and the 
interior arrangement and fittings.

As might have been expected from its ritualistic character 
and its roots in a medieval past, the Episcopal church led 
the fight for the use of Gothic architecture. As early as 
1807 the Episcopalian Churchman's Magazine of New Haven 
described Gothic solemnity as more fitting for religious 
exercises than 'the more light and finical £styley of 
Greece' (Early, p. 118).

Ashland, established ca. 1870, is mid-way between Omaha and 
Lincoln. The location is on the historic Ox BOW Trail, at a point 
where a rock-bottomed ford offered a safe crossing of the Salt River. 
In the 1870s the population numbered only a few hundred, and St. 
Stephen's Church was on the original town's very edge at the time of 
its construction.

In its location in a small town on the Great Plains, St. Stephen's 
Church well represents the manifestation of the Gothic tradition in the 
Episcopal Church   a tradition that began in America as early as the 
1600s when the first Anglican houses of worship were established on the 
eastern coast.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

A rectangular lot on the northwest corner of 15th and 
Adams Sts. in Ashland, measuring 140 feet deep and 88 feet wide.
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criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service.
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